ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 18, 2009
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire

Senat or Gene Therri aul t

MEMBERS ABSENT

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

CS FOR HOUSE JO NT RESOLUTI ON NO. 17(JUD)
Uging the United States Congress to reject HR 45, the Blair
Holt's Firearm Licensing and Record of Sale Act of 20009.

MOVED SCS CSHIR 17(JUD) OUT OF COW TTEE

Confirmati on Heari ngs:
Par ol e Board
Lonzo Hender son
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Judi ci al Conduct Conmm ssion
James Chri st opher Brown
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

SENATE BILL NO 59
"An Act relating to the operation of |ow speed vehicles."
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO. 73
"An Act relating to the use of headlights when operating a notor

vehicle. "
MOVED CSSB 73(JUD) OUT OF COWM TTEE

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

Bl LL: HIR 17

SHORT TITLE: OPPOSE H R 45 | N CONGRESS

SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HARRI S

02/ 11/ 09 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 11/ 09 (H JUD

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2009



02/ 16/ 09

(H
02/ 16/ 09 (H) Moved CSHIR 17(JUD) Qut of Committee
02/ 16/ 09 (H M NUTE( JUD)
02/ 18/ 09 (H) JUD RPT CS(JUD) 6DP
02/ 18/ 09 (H DP: GRUENBERG LYNN, COGH LL, HCOLMES,
GATTO, RAMRAS
02/ 25/ 09 (H) TRANSM TTED TO (S)
02/ 25/ 09 (H) VERSI ON:' CSHIR 17(JUD)
02/ 27/ 09 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
02/ 27/ 09 (S) JUD
03/ 16/ 09 (S JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
03/ 16/ 09 (S) Moved SCS CSHIR  17(JUD) Cut of
Comm ttee
03/ 16/ 09 (S M NUTE( JUD)
03/ 18/ 09 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
Bl LL: SB 59
SHORT TI TLE: LOW SPEED MOTOR VEHI CLES
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) STEDVAN
01/21/09 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 16/ 09
01/ 21/ 09 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/21/09 (S) TRA, JUD
02/ 17/ 09 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 17/ 09 (S) Heard & Held
02/ 17/ 09 (S) M NUTE( TRA)
02/ 24/ 09 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
02/ 24/ 09 (S Heard & Held
02/ 24/ 09 (S) M NUTE( TRA)
03/ 03/ 09 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 03/ 09 (S Moved CSSB 59(TRA) Qut of Conmittee
03/ 03/ 09 (S) M NUTE( TRA)
03/ 05/ 09 (S TRA RPT CS 4DP SAME TI TLE
03/ 05/ 09 (S DP: KOOKESH, MEYER, DAVI S, PASKVAN
03/ 18/ 09 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
BILL: SB 73
SHORT TI TLE: USE OF HEADLI GHTS REQUI RED
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) MENARD
01/ 22/ 09 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 22/ 09 (S TRA, JUD
03/ 03/ 09 (S) TRA AT 1: 00 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 03/ 09 (S) Moved SB 73 Qut of Conm ttee
03/ 03/ 09 (S M NUTE( TRA)
03/ 05/ 09 (S) TRA RPT 4DP
03/ 05/ 09 (S DP: KOOKESH, DAVIS, MEYER, PASKVAN
SENATE JUD COWM TTEE -2- March 18, 2009

JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120



03/ 18/ 09 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 211
W TNESS REG STER

LONZO HENDERSON
Anchor age AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Nomi nee to the Parol e Board.

JAMES CHRI STOPHER BROWN
Anchor age AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Nom nee to the Judicial Conduct Comm ssi on.

VESTON ElI LER, St aff
to Senator Bert Stedman
Al aska Capitol Building
Juneau AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 59 on behal f of the sponsor.

ROGER HEALY, Chief Engi neer

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 148.

GERALD HERBRANDSQN, representing hinself
Pet ersbhurg AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 59.

MEGAN PASTERNAK, representing herself
Sitka AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: St ated support for SB 59.

M CHAEL ROVI DO, St aff
to Senator Menard
Al aska Capitol Building
Juneau AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 73 on behalf of the sponsor.

ROY HO TE JR , representing hinself
Homer AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated support for SB 73.

KURT SM TH, Traffic and Safety Engi neer

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided information related to SB 73.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2009



1:34:34 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Wel echowski, Therriault and French.

HIR 17- OPPOSE H. R. 45 | N CONGRESS

1:34: 58 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of HIR 17. He expl ai ned
that the commttee anmended and reported the resolution from
commttee at the last neeting, but there was an error in the
anendnent. He asked for a notion to rescind the action to report
the bill fromcommttee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to rescind the action to report SCS
CSHIJR 17(JUD) from conmttee. There being no objection, the bil
was back before the commtt ee.

CHAI R FRENCH asked for a notion to rescind the action to adopt
Amendnent 1.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  noved to rescind the action to adopt
Amendrent 1.

1: 35: 30 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the comm ttee passed an anendnent or
a commttee substitute (CS)

CHAIR FRENCH said it was an anmendment .

SENATOR THERRI AULT sai d he had no objection.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that w thout objection, the notion to
resci nd Anrendnent 1 has been adopt ed.

CHAI R FRENCH noved to adopt Anendnent 2 as foll ows:

AMENDVENT 2

Page 2 , line 2:
Del ete “fel ony”
| nsert "m sdeneanor™

There being no objection, Anmendnent 2 was adopted and the
resol uti on was back before the commttee.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2009



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to report CS for HIR 17, as anended
from conmttee wth individual recommendations and attached
fiscal note. There was no objection and SCS CSHIR 17(JUD) noved
fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Comrttee.

At ease at 1:37 pm

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

CHAIR FRENCH announced the next order of business is the
confirmation hearing for M. Lonzo Henderson to the Parole
Board. He asked M. Lonzo to tell the commttee about his
background, qualifications and interest in the Parol e Board.

1:38:20 PM

LONZO HENDERSON related that he retired from the Departnent of
Corrections (DOC) after 21 years service. H's last job was
Deputy Conpact Administrator with the Division of Comunity
Corrections. The division name has since changed to probation
and parole. He started as a line officer and was pronoted up
through the ranks. He believes in the departnent’s m ssion and
likes the direction it has taken with its reentry program and
bri ngi ng back sone of the substance abuse prograns.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he has appeared in hearings before the
Par ol e Board.

MR. HENDERSON said yes, during the 10 years he was a line
of ficer.

CHAI R FRENCH observed that the Parole Board neets as nmany as 150
days a year and asked if he’'s aware of that comm tnent.

1:41:50 PM
MR. HENDERSON said yes; he's actually been participating in
heari ngs since January.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if it's accurate to say that based on his
wor k experience he’s in the position to have heard it all.

MR. HENDERSON said no; he's still learning but he does bring
sone experience to the table.

CHAI R FRENCH asked if the board neets only in Anchorage or if it
travel s.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2009



MR. HENDERSON explained that hearings recently were held in
Fai r banks, next nonth the board will travel to Arizona, and a
trip is planned for Seward in Muy.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the board neets face-to-face with the
pri soner before making a decision about whether or not to grant
par ol e.

MR. HENDERSON explained that there are several different kinds
of paroles. For discretionary paroles sone of the hearings are
t el ephoni ¢ and sone are face-to-face.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he is generally happy with the direction
the Parol e Board has taken in the | ast several years.

MR. HENDERSON said there’'s always opportunity for inprovenent,
but in large part he’'s pleased. He nentioned the new executive
director and said he likes that he is wusing technology to
enhance the board s m ssion.

1:44:53 PM
CHAIR FRENCH found no further questions and asked if he had
concl udi ng remarKks.

MR. HENDERSON said it is a privilege to testify before the
committee. He believes in the board s nission to protect the
public and he woul d be delighted to serve if confirned.

CHAIR FRENCH told M. Henderson that the committee nenbers woul d
sign the report and forward his name to the full legislature for
confirmation or rejection. He solicited a notion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI noved to advance the nane Lonzo Henderson
for appointnment to the Parole Board for consideration by the
full Legislature. There was no objection.

1:46:17 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the commttee next would hear from Chris
Brown. He asked himto tell the commttee about the position he
i s seeking and his background.

JAMES CHRISTOPHER BROW, nomnee to the Judicial Conduct
Comm ssion, said he noved to Alaska 5 years ago, and has worked
in the telecommunications field for nore than 30 years. He is
interested in serving as a non-legal nenber of the Judicial
Conduct Comm ssion and believes he will add a balanced view to

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2009



support the redress of citizens and provide an environnment for
judges and justices to feel confident in their actions.

1:48: 29 PM
CHAI R FRENCH noted that he works for AT&T Al ascom and asked if
he has had the opportunity to visit Juneau.

MR BROWN said he visits Juneau several tines a year. Most
recently he and his longtine associate, M. Felix, hosted the
| egi sl ative night at Perseverance Theatre.

CHAIR FRENCH informed the committee that the Judicial Conduct
Comm ssion is a nine nenber board, six of which are appointed by
the governor. Three are public nenbers who are not judges,
retired judges or a nenber of the state bar, and three are
attorneys who have practiced law in Alaska for ten years. The
other three nenbers are judges or justices who are elected by
the judges and justices of the state courts.

1: 50: 02 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked why he selected this particular board
and what he hopes to acconpli sh.

MR. BROW said he hopes to provide a fair and safe sounding
board. He’s as concerned about the wellbeing of the judges and
justices who nmay feel pressure due to public opinion as he is
with the citizenry who bring redress against a nenber of the
judiciary. Serving on this board is an opportunity to |everage
his strengths and interests in a way that would be of service to
the state and the people of Al aska.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has an opinion on how judges
are appointed in Al aska.

MR. BROM replied he doesn't know the details to offer a fully
t houghtful opinion, but it's refreshing that the process is
publi c.

1: 52: 08 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has an opinion on whether or
not there should be changes to the way judges are appointed in
Al aska.

MR. BROM replied he doesn’'t have an opinion.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked if he has no opinion at all.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2009



MR BROM replied he hasn’t seen or paid attention to that
specific process enough to feel there ought to be a different
one.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he has talked to others about the
way judges are appointed in Al aska.

MR. BROMWN said no; he's gotten information through the nedia.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI noted that M. Brown is on the board of
directors of an organization that is actively working to change
the way judges are appointed in this state and asked himif he
has di scussed that in his role as a board nenber.

1:53:19 PM

MR. BROM said that in the 18 nonths he's served on the Al aska
Fam |y Council he hasn't been asked to provide specific input on
that issue. “My involvenent in that part of that board has been
fairly quiet since I"'mnew ...to the state,” he added.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI  asked his philosophy on disciplining
j udges.

MR. BROMWN said his understanding is that the comm ssion doesn’'t
set the rules so nuch as it tries to determine if in fact there
has been a breach of responsibility by a justice or judge. In
the event that there is a breach, the entire comm ssion needs to
take sonme sort of action. But if it’s shown that the judge or
justice has not breached a responsibility, that information
needs to be as publicly communi cated as the opposite, he said.

1:54:48 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if he agrees that the way that judges
rule on issues should have no bearing on whether or not they are
di sci pli ned.

MR. BROM said he agrees to the extent that he understands all
the conplexities of the answer. Administering discipline to a
justice or judge has nore to do with the behavior surrounding
the case than disagreeing with the outcone of a case and
therefore agreeing with soneone who mght conplain against a
judge or justice, he said.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he doesn't want to see people on the
judicial council who adm nister discipline because they disagree
with a ruling. “If they do something inappropriate or that is
illegal or unethical, absolutely they should be disciplined.” He

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2009



asked if he would agree that the judge or justice should not be
disciplined if you nerely disagree with their rulings.

1:55:54 PM

MR. BROM said he agrees whol eheartedly. “I would suggest that
everyone on the comm ssion either has or would devel op opinions
per haps about the proper judgnent in a case and so we all have
to put that aside as we try to deal with the particular task
that we’'re given,” he said.

CHAIR FRENCH, finding no further questions, thanked M. Brown
for stepping forward to serve the public and solicited a notion.

1:56: 37 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noved to advance the nane Janes Christopher
Brown for appointnment to the Judicial Conduct Conm ssion for
consideration by the full Legislature. There was no objection.

At ease at 1:56:54 PM

SB 59-LOM SPEED MOTOR VEH CLES

1:58:13 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 59. [Before the
comm ttee was CSSB 59 (TRA).]

WESTON EILER, Staff to Senator Bert Stedman, said SB 59 would
anend Al aska statute to allow | ow speed electric vehicles access
on certain roads with a posted speed limt of 45 nph or |ess

rather than the current 35 nph. Federal regulation defines |ow
speed vehicles as those that travel no faster than 25 nph. The
bill was drafted to accompdate the growing use of |ow speed
vehicles in small communities by expanding the mles of road
t hese vehicles can access. The sponsor worked the DOl to address
sone of the potential issues that mght arise by having |ow
speed vehicles in large urban areas. As such the CS limts the
expanded access to comunities with a maxi num popul ation of
25,000 and not connected by road to Anchorage or Fairbanks. The

bill also includes an opt-in provision for communities.
2:00: 17 PM
The Departnent of Transportation estimates that the bill would

open an additional 30 mles of road in Southeast Al aska
communities to | owspeed vehicles. For exanple, the residents of
Wangell could drive |ow speed vehicles to their airport. SB 59
pronotes sustainable cost-effective transportation and at the
same tinme allows |ocal communities substantial flexibility.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -9- March 18, 2009



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked the definition of a |ow speed
vehi cl e.

MR. EILER explained that they are defined in federal regulation,
but the gist is that they can travel no faster than 25 nph.
Because of their slow speed they aren’t required to have certain
safety features such as airbags. In response to a question, he
said a Toyota hybrid is not a | ow speed vehicl e.

2:01:52 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if he knows how many | ow speed vehicl es
are in the state because they have to be registered with the
Di vision of Mdtor Vehicles (DW).

MR. EILER said yes they are registered with DW, 19 are
currently registered and there’'s a dealer in Petersburg.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked what crash-test standards they have.
MR. EILER offered to provide that information

CHAIR FRENCH noted that M. Healy wth the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF) and M. Springer
with DW are available to answer questions.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if | ow speed vehicles could operate in
the core of Fairbanks or Anchorage if the communities wanted to
al l ow t hat .

MR. EILER said he believes that by |ocal ordinance they woul d be
al l owed, but he would defer to the drafters.

2:04.:06 PM

ROGER HEALY, Chief Engineer, Departnent of Transportation and
Public Facilities (DOTPF), explained that the current statute
all ows | ow speed vehicles on roadways statew de that have posted
speed |imts of 35 nph or less. He further explained that the
existing regulations allow a | owspeed vehicle to cross hi ghways
with posted speed linmts of greater than 35 nph if the crossing
is to access another highway that is authorized for |ow speed
vehi cl es.

2: 05: 16 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if the senior population in the Gty of
North Pole could drive one of these vehicles to the grocery

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 10- March 18, 2009



store. They would not get on the R chardson H ghway so the
muni ci pality could make the decision to opt in.

MR. HEALY said not in that case because of the connection to the
Fai r banks and Anchorage road networKk.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI observed that | ow speed vehicles would not
be allowed in Huston or Wllow or Big Lake for the sane reason
They’ re connected to the Fairbanks and Anchorage road networKk.

MR HEALY said that's correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked what | ow speed vehicles are typically
used for.

MR. HEALY said he understands they are used for short point-to-
point trips such as fromhone to the store and back.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked the rational behind the provision
that excludes these vehicles in comunities that are connected
by road to Anchorage or Fairbanks.

2:07:19 PM

MR. HEALY expl ained that the provision is a result of discussion
bet ween the departnent and the sponsor. DOITPF' s main concern was
that data shows that accident potential increases as vehicle
speed differential increases. Vehicles traveling on roads that
are posted at 45 nph often travel nuch faster than that. Another
concern is that these vehicles would create congestion problens
on busy highways and therefore would not contribute to the
capacity of the roadway.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that the bill is aimed at Sitka, Petersburg,
Wangell and any little island communities, and asked what other
communities woul d be affected.

SENATOR THERRI AULT said they'd be allowed in all of rural Al aska
that isn’t connected.

2:09: 54 PM

MR. HEALY added that the language in the CS has an opt-in
provision for |ocal communities with a population of |ess than
25,000. In the unorgani zed borough these vehicles are allowed on
hi ghways outside city boundaries. Cities within the unorganized
bor ough such as None and Bethel retain the option.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2009



CHAIR FRENCH asked if there is a list of communities that would
qualify wunder the exception in subparagraph (B). After sone
di scussion he deferred his question.

2:12:11 PM

SENATOR THERRI AULT noted that Northway, which is a community
that is off the Al aska H ghway, wouldn’t be able to have these
vehi cl es.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d Tal keetna woul d be simlarly excluded.

MR. HEALY explained that there isn't a restriction on their use
in either of those communities as long as the existing speed
l[imt is below 35 nph. It’s the sane for Anchorage or Fairbanks;
the restriction applies just if the speed limt is greater than
35 nph.

2:13:30 PM

GERALD HERBRANDSON, representing hinself, stated support for SB
59. His conpany, Solar Wnd, specializes in alternative energy
products including electric vehicles. In Petersburg there are 9
of these vehicles and about 19 statewide. Basically these are
small slow speed cars that |ook sonewhat simlar to a VW bug

One difference is that they don’'t have certain safety features
such as airbags. In small communities nost trips are to the
grocery store, the post office or the school and that is hard on
gasoline or diesel powered engines because they don't warm up.
In contrast, electric vehicles are designed for this that kind
of trip. They're sinple, efficient, and econom cal to operate,
he sai d.

CHAI R FRENCH asked what his cars cost.

MR. HERBRANDSON said between $16,000 and $18,000. Operationa
costs are mnimal and mai ntenance is | ow

2:16: 58 PM
SENATOR THERRI AULT asked where the vehicl es are manuf act ured.

MR. HERBRANDSON said he sells Mles vehicles. They are Japanese
vehicles that are assenbled in China, nodified in California and
adapted for use in Al aska.

2:17:48 PM

MEGAN PASTERNAK, representing herself from Sitka, said she has
been a | ow speed electric vehicle owner and driver for nore than
a year. SB 59 is about nore than just cheap transportation; it

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2009



is a much needed step to help elimnate pollution and protect
the environnent. She is a very conscientious driver and is sure
ot her | ow speed vehicle drivers are simlarly conscientious. Her
understanding of why they are safe is that they are |ightweight
and “when involved in a crash they tend to bounce away rather
than take the full inpact force.”

2:20: 50 PM
CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony and announced he would hold
SB 59 in commttee.

SB 73-USE OF HEADLI GHTS REQUI RED

2:21: 30 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced t he consi derati on of SB 73.

M CHAEL ROVIDO, Staff to Senator Menard, said SB 73 would
require the wuse of vehicle headlights at all tines when
operating on Alaska roads. This addresses a key goal of the
Al aska Strategic H ghway Safety Plan. Canada, Norway and Sweden
saw col lisions drop after passing headlight |laws and this caused
t he sponsor to take a serious | ook at doing this in Al aska.

CHAI R FRENCH sai d he supports the bill.

2:24:14 PM
ROY HOTE JR, representing hinself from Honer, described SB 73
as a necessary bill. Since 2004 cars conme equi pped wth daylight

running lights and people are becom ng nore dependent on their
use. You get surprised when they aren't on, he said. It's a
safety factor that has proven itself on the Seward H ghway.

2:27:56 PM
CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinony and asked about the highway
signs that would be erected should the bill pass.

KURT SM TH, Traffic and Safety Engineer, Depar t ment of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOIPF), said should this
becone | aw DOTPF believes that it’s only fair to notify drivers

Signs would be posted at points of entry including boarders,
airports, and nmarine termnals. They estimate that 40 signs
woul d be necessary at a total cost of $135,000. DOTPF could cone
up with $40,000 so the fiscal note is $95, 000.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if the sponsor would agree to a January 1,

2010 effective date to provide time for DOTPF to put up the
signs and the public to becone aware of the |aw

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 13- March 18, 2009



MR. SM TH said DOTPF could have the signs up by Cctober 1 and
believes it would be advantageous to institute it then because
peopl e use their headlights at that tine of year.

CHAI R FRENCH proposed conceptual Anmendnent 1 to add an effective
date of Cctober 1, 2009.

2:30:46 PM

CHAI R FRENCH found no discussion or objection and announced t hat
conceptual Anmendnent 1 passes. Finding no further questions or
di scussi on he asked the will of the commttee.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI noved to report SB 73, as anended, from
committee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
note(s). There being no objection, CSSB 73(JUD) noved from the
Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:31:49 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee
nmeeting at 2:31 pm

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -14- March 18, 2009



